
CITY of LA GRANDE 
Urban Renewal Advisory Commission Regular Session 

Friday, February 10, 2023 
2:00 p.m. 

 
City Hall Council Chambers 

 
You can view the Work Session on Facebook Live at the following link: 

www.facebook.com/CityofLaGrande 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
In accordance with the Oregon Public Meetings Law, Advisory Commission Regular Sessions are open to 
the public; however, no public comments will be entertained during this Session.  If you are unable to 
access the meeting via the Facebook link above and need to make other arrangement to view the meeting, 
please contact City Staff at rstrope@cityoflagrande.org by email or by calling (541) 962-1309 not later than 
5:00 pm the day prior to meeting. 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
  
2. AGENDA APPROVAL 
 Chairperson asks if there are any additions or changes to the Agenda 
 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 
 a. Consider:  Approving the Minutes of the March 9, 2022 Minutes. 

 
4. PENDING BUSINESS 
      
      
5. NEW BUSINESS 
 a.  Discuss proposed changes to the Call For Projects policy 
 b.  Discuss and review proposed changes to the Traded Sector policy 
  
6.  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR COMMENTS 
     
 
7.  STAFF COMMENTS 
     
 
8. COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
9. ADJOURN 
 

 
 
____________________________________ 
 
Department Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.facebook.com/CityofLaGrande
mailto:rstrope@cityoflagrande.org


CITY OF LA GRANDE 
 

URBAN RENEWAL ADVISORY COMMISSION 
 

Regular Meeting 

Wednesday March 9, 2022 

2:00 p.m. 

ZOOM MEETING 

 La Grande City Hall 
 1000 Adams Avenue 

 

MINUTES 
 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 
Roxie Ogilvie, Vice Chair 
Alana Carollo 
Matt Sarfo 

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT EXCUSED: 
 
 
 
 

  
STAFF PRESENT: 
Timothy Bishop, Economic Development 
Director 
Robert Strope, District Manager 

DISCUSSION/DISPOSITION 

  
CITIZENS PRESENT: 
 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL  
  

  
AGENDA APPROVAL SCARFO made the Motion to approve the Agenda as 

presented, with CAROLLO providing the Second. 
 
USC:  Unanimous 

  
CONSENT AGENDA: VANCLEAVE stated Commissioner Ogilvie called 

about a couple errors and areas of more 
clarification.  They are as follows. 
 
1.  Page 2- Reworded some grammar errors in 2nd 
paragraph. 
2.  Page 3- Reworded some grammatical errors in 4th 
paragraph. 
3.  Page 4 – Reworded to better clarify the air bnb 
conversation 3rd paragraph. 
4.  Page 5 – Reworded the Agency Initiated 
comments under the Economic Development 
comment section. 
5.  End of page – changed that the meeting will be 
held via zoom meetings and not council chambers.  
 



Page 2 of 5 
 

SCARFO made the following Motion, CAROLLO 
providing the Second. 

  
 MOTION:  I move that the Minutes of the February 9, 

2022 be approved. 
 
MSC:  Unanimous 

  
PENDING BUSINESS: NONE 

  
NEW BUSINESS 

a. Review the approved Economic 
Development and Urban Renewal retreat 
summary. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     b.  Start the discussion of downtown parking 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STROPE stated part of the URAC meeting packet 
included the approved Urban Renewal retreat 
summary and wanted to give an opportunity for any 
questions about any of the items contained in the 
document. 
 
There were no questions from the Commission. 
 
OGIILVIE asked if there was any other insight to add 
about the retreat.  STROPE responded there will be 
a work session with the AGENCY/Council about the 
Economic Development strategy plan and invited 
the URAC to watch on Facebook.  Once that is 
approved, the document can be sent out.  STROPE 
added there isn’t any specific URAC action, but will 
be good to see what the plan looks like. 
 
 
OGILVIE stated after looking at the downtown 
parking document that was sent out, it appears La 
Grande Main Street plays a large part regarding 
downtown parking. What is discussed and 
recommended for parking from URAC would have to 
go before La Grande Main Street.  STROPE 
responded yes and commented the idea behind 
assigning parking to Main Street was adding another 
function on top them reviewing and recommending 
Façade Grant awards to justify their funding using 
Urban Renewal dollars. Additionally, it uses La 
Grande Main Street as a conduit and focal point 
between the City and the downtown businesses.  
 
STROPE continued if another run is taken at the 
Economic Improvement District who provides State 
funding for Main Street, that organization having 
value to downtown businesses will make it easier to 
get funding secured through that connection and 
provides an opportunity to further connect Main 
Street to downtown businesses. 
 
STROPE commented URAC is specifically taking a 
look at the downtown parking as it as impacted by 
the change in Call For Projects to allow additional 
incentives for upper floor housing.  There were 
concerns raised at the last meeting parking will get 
worse and what does the URAC want to look at or 
recommend about downtown parking. 
 



Page 3 of 5 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SCARFO commented that after looking at the 
parking document the LGMSD has to be involved. At 
what point should Main Street get involved and are 
they aware that downtown housing may be 
increasing.  STROPE responded the change in the 
incentive for upper floor housing has not been 
communicated to them yet. A parking survey was 
done a few years ago, talked about putting together 
a map that identifies parking areas better.  The 
Committee that was working on that didn’t take it to 
the next level where the Main Street Board of 
Directors would take a formal position and craft a 
recommendation to make any substantive changes. 
 
STROPE continued in large part the parking piece is 
tied back there needs to be consensus support from 
the downtown businesses.  While a survey has been 
done, Main Street hasn’t had a larger conversation 
with the downtown businesses about what any 
specific changes can be recommended.  
 
Additionally, Strope stated a few years ago the City 
decided to remove requirements to provide off street 
parking in downtown related to development.  To 
change from that, some of the elements to take into 
account is who does that apply to and how.   For 
owners that have made improvements up to the date 
of a potential parking change would be 
grandfathered in.    For any future improvements 
what would need to be done related to that change.   
Some cities collect an SDC fee for parking and if a 
project cannot provide parking, they pay xx amount 
of dollars that is put into a reserve pool that could 
be used to solve parking issues such as parking 
structures or converting property into parking lots.   
 
STROPE continued the Urban Renewal Plan project 
list does talk about things like parking studies as an 
allowable use of fund and not sure if it talks about 
providing parking.  If providing parking is not 
already in there, an amendment to the project list to 
allow for the construction for a parking lot would be 
an allowable use of funds for example.  This also 
would provide a nexus between the URAC, La 
Grande Main Street and the Parking, Traffic, Safety 
and Street Maintenance Advisory Commission to 
make a recommendation 
 
CARROLLO commented she was a part Main Street 
Committee that did the survey and recalls the big 
take away from that survey was building more 
awareness around that downtown parking map of 
where the 2 hour vs. 24-hour parking is located and 
to get those maps printed and distributed to the 
downtown business owners.  
 
OGILIVIE commented when URAC addresses 
housing above retail shops and no solution for 



Page 4 of 5 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

parking, she would feel more comfortable working 
with the La Grande Main Street or at least a 
discussion on which direction to head.   
 
STROPE commented that starting the dialog with 
Main Street is what should be next for the parking 
piece and with the Main Street retreat coming up 
soon, Timothy Bishop is on the board.  BISHOP 
commented the retreat is Feb. 19th and can bring up 
that topic for discussion. 
 
STROPE commented that downtown parking will 
continually get worse and two main issues from his 
perspective is: 
 
1.  Availably of spaces – if parking was added where 
do you put it and how much will it cost.   
 
2.  Turnover in spaces – currently it’s 2-hour parking 
and the argument is 2 hours isn’t long enough. That 
is countered by possibly changing to 3 or 4 hours 
hen that is countered by if it’s 4 hour parking the 
business owners and employees will take up the 
spots and results in no turnover for retail. 
 
There was consensus from the Commission to table 
the parking conversation until after the Main Street 
retreat and if they have any information to bring 
back.  Also see if any applications for upper floor 
housing above retail is submitted for Call for 
Projects.  

  
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
DIRECTOR/DISTRICT MANAGER COMMENTS 
 

BISHOP commented the 2022 Call For Projects is 
set to open March 14th and will accept applications 
through May 27th.  Currently about 10 inquires so 
far.  

STROPE commented continuing the search for 
more members for URAC. 

OGILVIE asked about in person meetings after 
dropping the mask mandates.  STROPE responded 
the intent is to go back to in person meetings and 
will continue to have a live feed via Facebook.  

COMMISSION COMMENTS: OGILVIE commented on the school bond and if it 
passes, the La Grande School Maintenance will be 
moving to the La Grande Light Truck property and 
will that effect the La Grande Light Truck CFP grant’s 
5-year requirement of the policy.  
 
STROPE commented La Grande school was talking 
about occupying a portion of the Light Truck 
property.  If the bond passes, will have to look into if 
they portion the school would occupy was improved 
with Urban Renewal dollars. Also need to look 



Page 5 of 5 
 

further into when the 5 year is marked after their final 
disbursement.  

 

There being no further business to come before this Regular Session of the Commission 
OGILVIE adjourned the meeting at 2:35 p.m.  The Commission is scheduled to meet again at 
the joint meeting with the Agency. 
 
Respectfully Submitted by:  
   
___________________________________  
Kendra Van Cleave, CEDD Department Secretary  
  
DATE APPROVED: __________________ 



1 
 

 
 
 
 

La Grande Urban Renewal Agency (URA) 
(Revised July 6, 2022INSERTMarch 1, 2023) 

“Call for Projects” 
(Revitalization Incentive Program) 

A. Geographic Scope: 
Within the Urban Renewal District. (See Map, Exhibit A) 

 
B. Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is to direct resources within the Urban Renewal District to 
revitalize the La Grande Central Business Zone with the primary goals of improving the 
exterior of historic buildings, and providing new opportunities for locations of high-
traffic retail businesses, which could include any of the following: improving 
accessibility issues, streetscape projects and building renovations.  Additionally, the 
Agency will invest in public/private development partnerships throughout the District 
including facilitating the development of commercial and industrial parts of the District 
to create jobs and income which will provide economic support to the Central Business 
Zone as well as developing upper floor residential within the downtown. 

 
C. General Criteria 

1) Subject property(ies)/ project(s) must lie within the Urban Renewal District’s 
“Geographic Scope” referenced  in Section A. 

2) Current or prospective owner(s) or developers representing owner(s) with consent, must 
be willing and agreeable to undertake a building/ property restoration, redevelopment or 
development project.  

3) Once projects are evaluated and ranked per criteria in Subsection 6, available funds will 
be allocated to projects in order of ranking, highest to lowest, with projects receiving the 
full amount requested until the funding is exhausted (see Sections G (1) and G(2)). 

4) Projects located in the La Grande Business and Technology Park will not be eligible for 
funding under this program and will be considered under a separate programly from all 
other projects and will have dedicated funding identified.  Funding budgeted for the 
Business Park will not be used for projects outside the Park even if there are no eligible 
Business Park projects in a given fiscal year. 

5) All projects submitted for URA funding consideration must conform to one or more 
projects or goals stated in the La Grande Urban Renewal Plan of 1999. 

6) When considerations for project funding are being made, the following criteria will serve 
as guidelines  to help evaluate and when appropriate, rank applications: 

  



2 
 

 
i. Preference will be given to projects that have a positive impact on the Central 

Business Zone (CBZ) (60 Points scored by Staff) 
Impact on Central Business Zone 
Criteria Total Possible Points 60 

Traded Sector Business any location 50 
Retail inside CBZ 45 
Commercial Business outside CBZ 40 
Commercial inside CBZ 35 
Retail Business outside CBZ 30 
Housing/Residential ONLY located inside the CBZ 25 
Additional points for:  Occupying building in CBZ that has been 
vacant for more than six months 10 
Additional points for:  Occupying building that has been vacant for 
more than twelve months 5 

 
ii. Preference will be given to projects that can demonstrate the mitigation, 

reduction, or removal of blight.  Undeveloped and/or bare land shall not be 
eligible for points under this preference category. (30 Points Scored by Agency 
with recommendation from Staff) 

Points for Blight 

Description of Blight 
Total Possible 

Points 30 
Potential hazard to environment or public and/or structure is unfit to occupy 30 
Extensive Exterior damage to property, including structural impacts that don’t 
rise to the level of unfit for occupancy 25 
Combination of Exterior and Interior damage, deterioration, and/or dilapidation 
beyond the purely aesthetic    20 
Property has been vacant more than five years but no other blight 15 
Slight damage to exterior of property only 10 
Damage to Interior of Property only  5 

 
  



3 
 

iii. Preference will be given to projects with higher levels of private investment 
compared to public funding from any source. In calculating this, all project costs 
shall be considered, including elements which are not eligible uses of funds such 
as certain housing elements. (30 Points Scored by Staff) 

 Private Investment to Public Dollars 
Private Investment (excluding all public funds from any source) Total Possible Points 30 
Over $150,000 30 
$125,001 to $150,000 25 
$100,001 to $125,000 20 
$75,001 to $100,000 15 
$50,001 to $75,000 10 
$25,001 to $50,000 5 

Less than $25,000 0 
 

iv. Preference will be given to projects with higher Return on Investment based on 
all project costs prepared by a licensed contractor in the form of a quote, n 
estimate, or actual or bid.  No points will be awarded for this category if the 
quotes, estimates, or bids are not from a licensed contractor.  (50 Points 
Scored by Staff) 

Return on Investment 
Total Project Cost Total Possible Points 50 
Total Project Cost of 500,000+ 50 
Total Project Cost of 400,000 40 
Total Project Cost of 300,000 30 
Total Project Cost of 150,000 20 
Less than 150,000 10 

 
 

v. Preference will be given to projects that provide additional upper floor residential 
dwelling units in the Central Business Zone. (15 Points Scored by Staff) 

Development of Upper Floor Residential in the CBZ 
Description  Total Possible Points 15 

Add points for each of the following that apply:  
Create 5+ New Dwelling Units 15 
Create 3-4 New Dwelling Units 10 
Create 1-2 New Dwelling Units 5 

 
  



4 
 

vi. Preference will be given to projects with high Business Viability and readiness to 
commence as determined in the sole discretion of the Agency. An established 
business that is well-capitalized, has completed construction plans, actual 
contractor bids, and a business plan would receive maximum points.  (25 Points 
Scored by Agency) 

 
Business Viability and Project Readiness 

Description  Total Possible Points 25 
Add  up to five points for each of the following that apply:  
Well-developed Business Plan included with application  5 
Binding quotes or formal Actual Bidsbids from licensed contractors as 
opposed to  instead of estimates from licensed contractors 5 
Project is well-capitalized (as evidenced by letters of credit, cash vs pre-
approved loan, etc.) 5 
Business in existence five or more years 5 
Professionally prepared construction plans and drawings 5 

 
 

vii. Preference will be given to projects based on an overall evaluation of the project 
following the Staff presentation of all projects as determined in the sole 
discretion of the Agency. (40 Points Scored by Agency) 

viii. Projects initiated by the City of La Grande or the La Grande Urban Renewal 
Agency are exempt from these criteria. 

 
7) If in the downtown, the project must include an active ground-floor “storefront” to 

encourage retail commercial use or other uses that will drive additional foot traffic 
downtown. 

8) A third party developer may represent the property with owner’s consent. 
9) Any past-due fines, taxes, fees or outstanding violations of local ordinances or permits 

must be addressed prior to any financial participation from the URA. 
10) Project applicant must enter into an agreement with the URA for performance. 
11) Any funds disbursed by the URA will be considered a reimbursement based on 

qualifying expenses submitted by the applicant unless other arrangements are made at the 
time of agreement. 

12) The applicant’s financial need, or lack thereof, will not be considered as part of the 
evaluation of the application.  (the applicant must be able to meet the required match). 

13) Funding decisions will not be based on whether or not a project has been started or 
completed prior to award, provided the project has been determined to be eligible for 
funding under this policy. Applications submitted “out of cycle” (in accord with section 
C. 14 below) and/or projects underway that have otherwise met the criteria for funding 
consideration will be treated with equal merit to those projects that are under 
consideration which have not yet started.  

14) Projects may commence prior to funding award, at the applicant’s risk, but only after a 
written application has been submitted and the District Manager deems the application 



5 
 

complete. The applicant acknowledges that submission of the grant application does not 
bind the URA in any way and that funding cannot be approved more than one fiscal year 
following the submission of the application. 

15) If projects are in the Historic District or otherwise are under the purveyance of the 
Landmarks Advisory Commission, projects must: 

i. Receive approval from the Commission prior to any final grant award. 
ii. Follow “The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation and 

Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings.” 
iii. Follow any and all standards and guidelines prescribed by the City of La Grande, 

to include the current STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES MANUAL FOR 
HISTORIC REHABILITATION AND PRESERVATION. 
 

D. Allowed uses of funds 
1) Professional design and engineering services, provided the project is completed within 

the terms of the agreement. 
2) Project must comply with all relevant local, state and federal laws and codes. 
3) Exterior façade renovations, to include: 

i. Windows 
ii. Doors 

iii. Storefronts 
iv. Awnings 
v. Alley-facing entrances 

vi. Painting and cleaning 
vii. Masonry repair, restoration or cleaning 

viii. Appropriately repairing, restoring or replacing of cornices, entrances, doors, 
windows, decorative details and awnings 

ix. Sign removal, repair or replacement 
x. Building identification 

xi. Critical maintenance, structural or code compliance 
xii. Restoration projects, including removal of slip sheathing or other treatments 

xiii. Roofs & roof repair 
4) Accessibility issues, to include elevators and associated equipment. 
5) Streetscape improvement projects. 
6) Site-related infrastructure. 
7) Work required for Building Code compliance. 
8) New site development, new construction. 
9) Mitigation, reduction or removal of blight.  
10) Housing/residential elements of a project outside the Central Business Zone would 

ONLY be eligible for funding IF AND ONLY IF the improvements are on upper floors 
of a project that included improvements to ground floor RETAIL.  Housing/residential 
projects on upper floors above existing retail outside the Central Business Zone would 
not be eligible unless the retail space was also being improved.   



6 
 

11) Housing/residential projects located in the Central Business Zone would be eligible for 
funding only if they are located on upper floors above commercial or retail uses and 
provide additional dwelling units.   
 

11) Other interior work is acceptable only if it meets one of the following: 
12) Permanent improvements that have a life span greater than ten years and are not 

considered tenant improvements. (Changes made to the interior to accommodate the 
needs of a tenant such as floor and wall coverings, ceilings, and partitions). 

13) Improvements are required due to directly related to structural changes such as removing 
walls.  

13) Examples could include addition of equipment such as installation of coolers, 
refrigeration or hood systems for restaurants, floor and paint needed for floor plan 
changes or other equipment that is permanently installed in the structure.     

14) Replacement or upgrade of mMajor mechanical, electrical, plumbing, elevators, and 
HVAC systems required as part of major renovations.upgrades or repairs. 

 
E. Prohibited uses of funds 

1) Refinancing existing debt. 
2) Marketing property for re-sale. 
3) Conversion of downtown ground-floor uses to other than retail, entertainment or food & 

beverage. 
4) Except as allowed in D. 10) and D.11) above, housing/residential elements of a project 

including but not limited to improvements on upper floors of a project that include 
improvements to ground floor commercial and stand-alone housing/residential projects 
would not be eligible for funding. 

5) Payment of taxes, fines or fees current or delinquent. 
6) Payroll of employees related to the developer or associated businesses, unless involved in 

the construction phase of the project. 
7) Cleaning unless it is required as part of an otherwise allowable use of funds. 
8) Inappropriate restoration activities. 
9) Inappropriate or non-approved design or materials. 
10) Interior improvements (unless directly related to an approved exterior project or part of a 

needed and approved structural or accessibility improvement project which require the 
removal and replacement of the existing interior improvements.) including but not limited 
to:  

10)  
11) Carpeting and, floor coverings. 
12) Interior painting. 
13) Removable fixtures, appliances, furnishings, cabinetry, etc. 
14) Professional design and engineering services except as part of an approved project. 
15) Working capital. 
16) Financing of inventory. 

 
F. Applicant Criteria 



7 
 

1) Proposals may come from tenants, owners of buildings or third party developers; if other 
than the owners, an authorization letter from owner(s) must accompany proposal/ 
application. 

2) Approved projects should be ready to begin within six (6) months of funding award 
notification and shall be completed within twenty-four (24) months of application, unless 
an extension is granted. 

3) Applicants must enter into an agreement with the URA and work with City/URA on their 
project. 

4) Applicant cannot have any outstanding or unresolved fine, fee, permit, lawsuit or 
infraction with the City of La Grande. 

5) Any agreement or application extensions may only be granted by the District Manager or 
the URA. All granted extensions will be reported to the URA. 

6) Any deviations from initial submittals must be approved by the District Manager. 
 

G. Funding Information 
1) Projects should have a minimum total cost of $10,000: 

i. City of La Grande Urban Renewal funding limits:  50% of eligible costs, up to 
$50,000; $75,000, if a majority of work performed is done with Union County 
vendors/ contractors. 

2) Funding for projects is capped at $75,000 as described above unless it is new 
construction at the La Grande Business and Technology Park on lots larger than 1 acre or 
lots that are owned by the Agency, in which case the project is eligible for up to 1/2 of 
total cost, up to $75,000 of funding or $100,000 if a majority of work performed is done 
with Union County vendors/ contractors. 

3) Private building owner(s)/tenant(s)/ developer(s) must contribute at least 1/2 of total 
project cost; contributions may come from commercial lenders or other sources, 
including grants or loans from other agencies on applicant’s behalf. 

2) Local funds may at times be augmented by outside sources, such as State of Oregon 
grants. 

3) Funds will be disbursed on a reimbursement basis ONLY; accurate and timely receipts 
are required to receive funds from the URA. 

4) All required permitting must be completed prior to commencing work.  Any work 
completed without first obtaining the required permit(s) shall not be eligible for 
reimbursement and shall result in a reduction of the grant award in an amount determined 
at the sole discretion of the District Manager.   

5) Projects with grant awards exceeding $25,000 are eligible to receive a progress payment 
once the project is 50% complete.  The amount of the payment shall be based on the pro-
rata completion percentage.   The percentage of the project completed will be determined 
by the District Manager.  Additional progress payments may be made at the discretion of 
the District Manager up to a maximum of 75% of grant award.    

6) Funds will only be disbursed on a reimbursement basis and on completion of the project 
unless they qualify for a progress payment as described above.  In order to be deemed 
complete, all work must be finished, any City required site improvements completed, and 
final inspections completed and approved and if applicable, a final occupancy permit 



8 
 

granted by the Building Official.  Temporary occupancy permits do not satisfy this 
requirement.   

7) For projects requiring an occupancy permit, if the property is occupied without first 
receiving either the final occupancy permit or a temporary occupancy permit, the 
contributions of the URA will be considered a loan and the full amount of any and all 
URA funds disbursed shall become due and payable to the URA immediately upon 
notification by the District Manager.  

8) The URA will make every effort to provide timely disbursements upon receipt of 
complete applications and proof of appropriate expenses. 

9) The URA will have the ability to make loans in addition to, or in place of, grants at its 
discretion. 

10) Real property related to the project may not be transferred or sold within five (5) years 
from the date of the project completion and final disbursement of funds. In the event of a 
sale, the contribution of URA funding will be considered a loan and the full amount of 
any and all URA funds disbursed shall become due and payable to the URA immediately 
upon said sale or transfer. Liens may be placed on properties receiving URA benefits for 
amounts up to the full grant amount at the discretion of the URA and/or the District 
Manager. Projects initiated by the City of La Grande or the La Grande Urban Renewal 
Agency would be exempt from this provision. 

11) Funds disbursed under this program may not be combined with Building Façade Grant 
funds related to the same project at the same time (during a 12-month period) and site 
location, but may be combined with other Urban Renewal funding programs. 

12) If the property owner received any property tax abatement, or property tax credit, or any 
other form of property tax relief for the property related to the project resulting in any 
reduction of the Agency’s property tax revenues, or if the use of the property is changed 
resulting in the property not being subject to City property taxes within five (5) years 
from the date of the final disbursement of funds, the contributions of the URA will be 
considered a loan and the full amount of any and all URA funds disbursed shall become 
due and payable to the URA immediately upon receipt of the property tax abatement or 
credit notification.  This requirement DOES NOT apply to Federal or State Tax Credits 
that do not reduce the Agency’s property tax revenues.   

13) Liens may be placed on properties receiving URA benefits for amounts up to the full 
grant amount at the discretion of the URA and/or the District Manager. 

H. Application and Approval Procedure 
1) A letter of intent describing the project including the specific physical improvements 

proposed, completed budget form with estimated costs, and the intended use of the 
property.  Conceptual drawings, construction plans, and cost estimates should be 
provided if available, but are not required to submit the letter of intent.  Letter of intent 
deadlines will be established by the District Manager and this requirement may be 
waived at the discretion of the District Manager.  A pre-application meeting may be 
required prior to submitting an application that could include: the Economic 
Development Director, the Building Official, City Planner, and a representative from the 
Landmarks Commission if appropriate.  



9 
 

2) Application must be on a project intake form provided by the URA and must include all 
necessary and required supporting documentation so as to fully satisfy all of the above-
stated criteria to be deemed complete. Project applications may be submitted either as 
digital entries (Adobe Acrobat, Microsoft Word, Microsoft Excel, Microsoft PowerPoint 
or JPEG image files are acceptable formats) that are emailed or hand-delivered as a CD 
or as hard copies hand-delivered or mailed to City Hall. Faxed copies will not be 
accepted. 

3) Application must be submitted not later than the date established by the District Manager 
as the cutoff for consideration each fiscal year, typically not later than April 15th to be 
considered for funding.  Approved projects will normally receive funding approval 
effective on July 1st. 

4) Any and all of the following bodies may be involved in the approval and/or review of a 
project: 

i. City of La Grande/URA staff. 
ii. La Grande Landmarks Advisory Commission. 

iii. La Grande Main Street Design Committee. 
iv. La Grande Urban Renewal Advisory Commission. 
v. La Grande City Council/ Urban Renewal Agency. 

vi. La Grande Planning Commission. 
vii. State of Oregon Main Street program. 

viii. State of Oregon Historic Preservation Office. 
5) All funding requests will be copied to select City staff depending on the type of 

application, but at a minimum to the Community Development Director. 
6) All funding requests will require La Grande Urban Renewal Agency approval at a public 

meeting. 
7) Upon receipt of a complete application, applicants will be notified within thirty (30) days 

of project application completeness. 
8) Applications may be modified or approved with conditions. 
9) City/URA staff, upon request of the applicant, will provide technical assistance and 

resources to applicants to help ensure successful completion of applications. 
10) City/URA staff will review applications and provide a staff report which shall include 

comments regarding how the application meets the criteria required in this policy and 
conformance with the Urban Renewal Plan. 

11) The Agency members will have at least fourteen days to review the packets and may 
submit specific questions to staff regarding individual applications during the first seven 
days.  This will allow staff to request answers from the applicants and provide the 
questions and answers to all reviewers.  

12) The Staff and Agency will score projects based on the application using the identified 
preference criteria in section C. 4) above.  Total points for each application will be 
provided by Agency to Staff not later than three working days prior to the joint special 
session.  Once submitted, the scoring cannot be changed.    

13) The Urban Renewal Agency shall conduct a special meeting to consider the funding 
applications and evaluate the applications using the following sequence: 

a. Introductions and roll call of Agency. 



10 
 

b. Staff report and presentation of each project. 
c. Agency  discussion and individual scoring—following the presentations, the 

Agency  members will discuss the projects and share any information that may 
have been gained by individual Agency members through site visits, contact with 
applicants, Staff, and/or members of the public.  Following the discussion, 
Agency members will individually award up to 40 points per project using forms 
provided and turn them in to Staff.   

d. Break—during the break the Staff will compile the scores and order rank the 
projects. 

e. Agency deliberations - The Staff will display the spreadsheet showing the project 
scoring and funding amounts allocated as prescribed in Section C. 3.  The 
Agency will then vote to approve the funding.  (Actual funding is contingent 
upon budget adoption).   

f. No public comments, or comments by applicants will be entertained during the 
special meeting.  

14) Projects which do not receive grant funding or do not receive the full amount funded may 
be withdrawn by the applicant and resubmitted without penalty in the next funding cycle 
as if it is a new project. 

15) Additional Funding Requests: The URA shall not consider any requests for funding 
increases to approved project funding resulting from cost overruns or changes in the 
project that are not an increase in the scope of the project including but not limited to 
changes in materials or contractors.  The URA may consider additional funding requests 
at the next funding cycle, at which time the application shall compete as if it were a new 
project, for unforeseen conditions encountered or increasing the scope of the project for 
items including but not limited to expanding the project to include additional square 
footage or adding new features that were not part of the original application. 

16) Reductions in project scope:  Minor reductions in the scope of the project may be 
approved by the District Manager without a reduction in awarded project funding.  Any 
reduction exceeding 25% of the scope of the project or $150,000 of the total project cost, 
whichever is less, must be approved by the Agency and may result in a reduction in the 
amount awarded on a case by case basis. 

  



11 
 

I. Submittal Requirements: 
1) All submissions must be accompanied with the following information: 

i. A letter of intent to include: Contact information for project and building owner, 
building address, project description, complete budget form, concept drawings 
and cost estimates (if cost estimates are available at the time letter of intent is 
submitted).  

ii. Applications shall include: 
a. Building owner name & contact information. 
b. Project applicant name (if different from above) & contact information. 
c. Letter of authorization from building owner, if owner is not applicant.  
d. If the project will not be occupied by the applicant, a Letter of Intent 

from business owner committing to occupy the space once the project is 
complete, or a detailed recruitment plan including the type of tenant(s) 
being recruited.  

e. Building address. 
f. Building historic name, if known. 
g. Current photograph of the building & historic photos, if available. 
h. Funding amount requested. 
i. Detailed project budget, on an attached sheet to include expenditures and 

sources of funds. 
j. Detailed narrative and/or visual description of project. 
k. Detailed conceptual project floor plan/drawings and site plan.  

iii. Current building use, including tenant (not residential) names and contact 
information. 

iv. Project timeline. 
 

2) The submitted application and proposal for the project, once accepted as the final 
concept, shall become and wholly remain the property of the City/URA. The City/URA 
will retain the reproduction rights to use images of the artwork to prepare and distribute 
marketing materials, web site materials or for any other use in promotional materials. 

 
Approved by the Urban Renewal Agency July 6, 2022March 1, 2023, this policy is effective immediately 
and applies to all projects funded after this date, regardless of application submission date.   
 
 
Robert A. Strope 
District Manager  



12 
 

Exhibit “A” 
La Grande Urban Renewal District 

 



1 
 

 

La Grande Urban Renewal Agency 

(Approved March 3, 2021) 

Traded Sector/Business Park Call for Project Business Attraction Incentive 
Program  

A. Geographic Scope: 
1. Within the Urban Renewal District. (See Map, Exhibit A) 
2. Specifically in areas zoned industrial and/or commercial as follows. 

i. Central Business (CB) 
ii. General Commercial (GC) 

iii. Light Industrial (I-1) 
iv. Heavy Industrial (I-2) 
v. Business Park (BP) 

3. Specifically targeted development opportunities in the La Grande Business and 
Technology Park. 

 
B. Purpose 

The purpose of this policy is to provide cash incentives to attract new high-quality 
jobs, businesses and investments into the District. Additional  secondary purposes 
include  is to filling the La Grande Business & Technology Park (LGBTP or Park) 
and attracting with high quality “traded sector” businesses that export goods and/or 
services and import wealth and provide jobs above the Union County average wage. 
These funds are intended to be used as a recruitment tool to provide a “last-in” 
incentive to be used primarily for gap financing and will represent a minor 
percentage of an overall project cost; for new construction at the LGBTP; or a 
combination thereof.  Projects should be financially viable without this funding. 
This policy will be governed by the La Grande Urban Renewal Agency (URA) and 
administered by the City of La Grande staff. 

 
C. General Criteria 

1) Subject property(ies)/ project(s) must lie within the Urban Renewal District (URD), 
within the “Geographic Scope” referenced  in Section A. 

Formatted: Highlight



2 
 

2) Current or prospective owner(s) or developers representing owner(s) with consent 
must be willing and agreeable to undertake a new business development project.  

3) All projects submitted for URA funding consideration must conform to one or more 
projects or goals stated in the La Grande Urban Renewal Plan of 1999. 

4) The URA will not consider, nor will staff accept applications for funding that do 
not comply with the preceding General Criteria.   

5) When evaluating  applications for project funding, the following criteria will serve 
as guidelines  and when appropriate, to rank applications: 

i. Projects must be viable for-profit businesses upon project completion. 
ii. Projects must help achieve the mission of the La Grande Urban Renewal 

Plan to revitalize La Grande’s Central Business Zone by investing in 
public/private development partnerships in the Central Business Zone 
(CBZ) or facilitating the development of commercial and industrial parts of 
the Urban Renewal District to create jobs and income that will provide 
economic support to the CBZ.  

iii. Start-up businesses will not be considered.   
iii. Projects that meet the following criteria are eligible for higher funding 

levels as identified in G. Funding Information below: 
iv.• Projects must be businesses that are in the “traded sector” that export 

at least 50% of their goods and/or services outside of Union County 
and all counties that border Union County based on gross sales. 
Examples of such businesses are as follows:  

1.a. Manufacturing 
2.b.Food processing 
3.c. Headquarters 
4.d.Data centers 
5.e. Call centers 

6.i. Wholesale trade 
• Transportation/ distribution  
7.•  
v.• Projects must create at least three (3) new permanent jobs and 

employ new employees at or above the average wage in Union 
County for at least three (3) years as specified in the individual 
funding agreement. The 2013 average wage will be indexed at 
$32,029 annually or $15.40/hour.             (additional preference 
based on number of jobs) 

vi.iv. Preference will be given to projects with higher ratios of private investment 
to public funding and expected return of property tax revenues.  

vii.v. Preference will be given to projects that locate in the LGBTP.  

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 4 + Aligned at:  1.75" +
Indent at:  2"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 5 + Numbering Style: a, b,
c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  2.25" +
Indent at:  2.5"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 6 + Numbering Style: i, ii,
iii, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Right + Aligned at:  2.88" +
Indent at:  3"

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 4 + Aligned at:  1.75" +
Indent at:  2"

Commented [RS1]: This list should be refined 

Commented [RS2]: This needs to be updated 



3 
 

6) If in the downtown, project must include an active not displace any currently 
ground-floor retail “storefronts” that encourages retail commercial use or other uses 
that drive foot traffic downtown. 

7) A third party developer may represent the property with owner’s consent. 
8) Any past-due fines, taxes, fees or outstanding violations of local ordinances must 

be addressed prior to any financial participation from the URA. 
9) Project applicant must enter into an agreement with the URA for performance. 
10) Any funds disbursed by the URA may be considered a reimbursement based on 

qualifying expenses submitted by the applicant and will be specified at the time of 
funding agreement.  

11) Project must comply with all relevant local, state and federal laws and codes. 
12) If projects are in the Historic District or otherwise are under the purveyance of the 

Landmarks Advisory Commission, projects must: 
i. Receive certificate of “historic appropriateness” from the Commission prior 

to any grant award and/or disbursement of funds. 
ii. Follow “The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation and 

Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings.” 
iii. Follow any and all standards and guidelines prescribed by the City of 

La Grande, to include 2009 STANDARDS AND GUIDELINES 
MANUAL FOR HISTORIC REHABILITATION AND PRESERVATION 
or its successor. 

 
D. Allowed uses of funds 

1) Exterior building renovations or construction. 
2) Real estate purchase; associated costs & fees. 
3) Required on-site and off-site infrastructure improvements. 
4) Accessibility issues, to include elevators and associated equipment. 
5) Streetscape improvement projects. 
6) Work required for Building Code compliance. 
7) New site prep and development, new construction. 
8) Mitigation, reduction or removal of blight. 
9) Earthwork related to wetland or floodway mitigation, as permitted and/or required 

by state or local agencies. 
10) Professional design and engineering services, required for construction or 

renovations, provided the physical improvements related to these services (project) 
are completed within the terms of the agreement. 

11) Other interior work to be approved on a case-by-case basis: 
i. Permanent improvements that have a life span greater than five years that 

are not considered tenant improvements or other items or fixtures that 
cannot easily be removed from the structure. 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight



4 
 

ii. Mechanical, electrical, plumbing systems installations, or upgrades. 
 

E. Prohibited uses of funds 
1) Refinancing existing debt. 
2) Marketing property for re-sale. 
3) Conversion of downtown ground-floor uses to other than retail, entertainment or 

food & beverage. 
4) Moving, travel or storage expenses. 
5) Payment of taxes, fines or fees current, future or delinquent. 
6) Payroll of employees related to the developer or associated businesses, unless 

involved in the construction phase of the project. 
7) Cleaning unless it is required as part of an otherwise allowable use of funds. 
8) Inappropriate restoration activities. 
9) Inappropriate or non-approved design or materials. 

i. Interior improvements (unless directly related to an approved exterior project or 
part of a needed and approved structural or accessibility improvement project which 
require the removal and replacement of the existing interior improvements. ) including 
but not limited to:  

ii.i. Carpeting, and floor coverings. 
iii.ii. Changes to non-load-bearing walls. 
iv.iii. Interior pPainting, interior repairs. 
v.iv. Removable fixtures, appliances, furnishings, cabinetry, etc. 

10) Professional design and engineering services except as part of an approved project 
as stated above. 

11) Feasibility studies, business plan development, or other consulting services. 
12) Working capital. 
13) Financing of inventory. 
14) Payment for services, such as legal, insurance or brokerage fees. 

 
F. Applicant Criteria 

1) Proposals may come from tenants, owners of buildings or property or third party 
developers; if other than the owners, an authorization letter from owner(s) or 
brokers must accompany proposal/ application. 

2) Proposals must contain at a minimum the items identified in Section I. 
3) Approved projects should be ready to begin within six (6) months of application 

and should be completed within eighteen (18) months of application. Extensions 
may be allowed on a case-by-case basis as specified in individual funding 
agreements. Any agreement or application extensions may only be granted by the 
District Manager or the URA. All granted extensions will be reported to the URA. 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Space After:  0 pt

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight



5 
 

4) Applicants must enter into a funding agreement with the URA and work with 
City/URA, Union County Economic Development Corp. (UCEDC) and/or State 
officials (as applicable) on their project. 

5) Applicant(s) cannot have any outstanding or unresolved fine, fee, lawsuit or 
infraction with the City of La Grande. 

6) Any deviations from initial submittals must be approved by the District Manager. 
7) Projects may commence prior to funding award, at the applicant’s risk, but only 

after a written application has been submitted and the District Manager deems the 
application complete. The applicant acknowledges that submission of the grant 
application does not bind the URA in any way and that funding cannot be approved 
more than one fiscal year following the submission of the application.   

 
G. Funding Information 

1) Projects must be a minimum of $500,000, total cost: 
• Traded Sector:   

a. City of La Grande Urban Renewal – up to 1/3 of total project 
cost, up to $150,000500,000:  .Minimum $500,000, total 
cost that are that are in the “traded sector” and create at least 
three (3) new permanent jobs and employ new employees at 
or above the average wage in Union County for at least three 
(3) years as specified in the individual funding agreement. 
The 2013 average wage will be indexed at $32,029 annually 
or $15.40/hour.             (additional preference based on 
number of jobs) 

i.  
ii. Urban Renewal funding may be up to $200,000, if a majority of work 

performed is done with licensed Union County vendors/ contractors. 
iii. Grant requests above $200,000 will be considered on a case-by-case basis. 

b. Private building owner(s)/tenant(s)/ developer(s) must 
contribute at least 2/3 of total project cost; contribution may 
come from commercial lenders or other sources, including 
grants or loans from other agencies on applicant’s behalf.  
In-kind contributions shall not be considered. 

c. The amount of funding shall be on a case by case basis and 
to receive funding over $100,000, a combination of job 
creation and project cost shall be used to determine the 
Agency contribution.  

iv.• Non-traded sector new contruction projects located at the La Grande 
Business and Technology will be limited to $100,000 in funding and will 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 5 + Numbering Style: a, b,
c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  2.25" +
Indent at:  2.5"

Commented [RS3]: $425,000 in current budget 

Commented [RS4]: This needs to be updated 

Commented [RS5]: We probably need a matrix or a better 
defined piece here.  $50,000 per job over 3?  $25,000 for each 
$250,000 of project cost over $500,000?   

Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 3 + Aligned at:  1.38" +
Indent at:  1.5"



6 
 

use the application, scoring, and funding criteria contained in the current 
Call for Project policy. 

2) Funding is contingent upon URA budget approval and subsequent availability of 
funds. 

3) Local funds may be augmented by outside sources, such as State of Oregon grants 
or loans. 

4) Funds will be disbursed on a reimbursement basis ONLY; accurate and timely 
receipts are required to receive funds from the URA. 

5) Normally, funds will be disbursed on completion of the project; however, the 
applicant may request progress payments as part of the agreement between the 
URA and the applicant. 

6) URA will make every effort to provide timely disbursements upon receipt of 
complete applications and proof of appropriate expenses. 

7) The URA will have the ability to make loans in addition to, or in place of, grants at 
its discretion. 

8) Real property related to the project may not be transferred or sold within five (5) 
years from the date of the project completion and final disbursement of funds. In 
the event of a sale, the contribution of URA funding will be considered a loan and 
the full amount of any and all URA funds disbursed shall become due and payable 
to the URA immediately upon said sale or transfer. Liens may be placed on 
properties receiving URA benefits for amounts up to the full grant amount at the 
discretion of the URA and/or the District Manager. 

9) Funds disbursed under this program may not be combined with Building Façade 
Grant funds related to the same project at the same time (during a 12-month period) 
and site location. 

10) If the property owner receivesd any property tax abatement or property tax credit, 
or any other form of property tax relief  for the property related to the project 
resulting in any reduction of the Agency’s property tax revenues within five (5) 
years from the date of the final disbursement of funds, the contributions of the URA 
will be considered a loan and the full amount of any and all URA funds disbursed 
shall become due and payable to the URA immediately upon receipt of the property 
tax abatement or credit notification.  This requirement DOES NOT apply to Federal 
or State Tax Credits that do not reduce the Agency’s property tax revenues.   

11) Liens may be placed on properties receiving URA benefits for amounts up to the 
full grant amount at the discretion of the URA and/or the District Manager. 

10)12)  
 

H. Application and Approval Procedure 
1) Application must be on a project intake form provided by the URA and must 

include all necessary and required supporting documentation so as to fully satisfy 
all of the above-stated criteria to be deemed complete. Project applications may be 
submitted either as digital entries (Adobe Acrobat, Microsoft Word, Microsoft 

Commented [RS6]: We may want to adjust this.  The intent is 
to be responsive to leads at the Business Park and Traded Sector 
opportunities and to award funding outside the CFP timelines. 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight



7 
 

Excel, Microsoft PowerPoint or JPEG image files are acceptable formats) that are 
emailed or hand-delivered as a CD, DVD, USB drive,  or as hard copies hand-
delivered or mailed to City Hall. Faxed copies will not be accepted. 

2) Any and all of the following bodies may be involved in the approval and/or review 
of a project: 

i. City of La Grande/URA staff. 
ii. La Grande Landmarks Advisory Commission. 

iii. La Grande Urban Renewal Advisory Commission. 
iv. La Grande City Council/ Urban Renewal Agency. 
v. Union County Economic Development Corporation (UCEDC). 

vi.v. La Grande Planning Commission. 
3) All funding requests will require La Grande Urban Renewal Agency approval at a 

public meeting. Any submitted proprietary and/or financial information will be kept 
confidential and out of the public record to the extent allowable by law. 

4) Project applications may be reviewed by the Urban Renewal Advisory Commission 
(URAC) for funding recommendation. 

5) Upon receipt of an application, applicants will typically be notified within ten (10) 
business days of project application completeness. 

6) Applications may be modified or approved with conditions. 
7) Applicants may be asked to present their projects to any of the bodies listed in 

Section H.2. 
8) City/URA staff may provide technical assistance and resources to applicants to help 

ensure successful applications to the extent possible. 
 

I. Submittal Requirements: 
1) All submissions must be accompanied with the following information: 

i. Past three years financial data on the business and the primary proprietor(s). 
ii. Resumes or other historical information that accurately portrays the 

applicants’ business history. 
iii. Business plan that includes information on the business’ history and a pro-

forma for the proposed new operation in La Grande. 
iv. Project scope and detailed project description, to include a detailed budget 

that reflects the total investment value, sources of revenue and itemized 
expenses. 

v. Financial and non-financial request of URA participation that specifies 
categorical use of funds and any other requested URA support. 

vi. Detailed listing of expected new job creation to include quantity of jobs, job 
titles, base hourly or annual wages, explanation and dollar value of any 
owner-provided non-mandatory benefits and total cumulative annual 
payroll impact. 

Formatted: Highlight



8 
 

vii. Building/ property owner name & contact information. 
viii. Project applicant name (if different from above) & contact information. 

ix. Letter of authorization from property owner or broker, if owner is not the 
applicant. 

x. Building/ property address. 
xi. Current photograph of the building/ property & historic photos, if available. 

xii. Funding amount requested and proposed use(s). 
xiii. Current building/ property use, including tenant names and contact 

information, if applicable. 
xiv. Project timeline. 

2) The submitted application and proposal for the project, once accepted as the final 
concept, shall become and wholly remain the property of the City/URA. The 
City/URA will retain the reproduction rights to use images of the artwork to prepare 
and distribute marketing materials, web site materials or for any other use in 
promotional materials. 

 
Approved by the Urban Renewal Agency March 3, 2021 
 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Robert A. Strope 
District Manager 
 
  



9 
 

Exhibit “A” 

La Grande Urban Renewal District 

 




